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Harry Eagar, The Maui News

CHAIR BAISA:
... (gavel). . .
The meeting of the Maui County Council
Planning ... Committee is called to order. It is now ten minutes after nine. I am the Chair
of the Planning Committee Gladys Coelho Baisa. And I welcome everyone to this
meeting and thank you for being patient with us. I'm sorry I guess we're having a little
bit of reentry problems after a nice three-day weekend. I hope everybody had a great
Labor Day weekend and thank you for being here.
I'd like to first of all ask those of you who might have devices in your pocket that make
noise like cell phones or anything else if you would please put them on the silent mode so
we will not have any interruptions in our proceedings today. Thank you very much. I'd
like to introduce you to our Committee Members. Jo Anne Johnson our Vice-chair.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Jo Anne. And Council Chair Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Chair. And we also have Councilmember Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Mike. Excused today is Member Bill Medeiros. Okay. And
with us today to help us get things done we have James Giroux our Deputy Corporation
Counsel. Good morning, James.
MR. GIROUX: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. And our executive ... branch representative Jeff Hunt, our
Planning Director, and is Victor Reyes here?
MS. TEGARDEN: No. I'm here.
CHAIR BAISA: Oh, good morning. We have Deidre Tegarden who is here with us from the
Economic Development Office. Thank you for being here, Deidre. And we also have
our Staff, we have David Raatz our Legislative Attorney and we have Yvette Bouthillier
our Committee Secretary today. She's filling in for our regular Secretary Clarita Balala,
who's on a day off.
So, welcome everybody and thank you very much for being here. Public testimony will
be accepted today for all items on the agenda, and we have three, starting in a few
moments. Those wishing to testify should signup at the Secretary's desk here.
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Testimony will be limited to three minutes as we do in Planning Committee. And
testifiers are requested to state their name for the record and to indicate if they are
representing anyone beside themselves. We'd appreciate having that for our files.
Members, today we have three items on our agenda all relating to renewable energy.
PC-I4 BIO ENERGY SYSTEMS OF HAWAII - RENEWABLE ENERGY FROM
WOOD WASTE; PC-IS BIOMASS ENERGY, and PC-8 BLUEEARTH MAUl
BIODIESEL. Today, we'll, let's start with PC-I4 Bio Energy Systems of Hawaii renewable energy from wood waste. We are very fortunate today to be joined, joined by
James Loux of Bio Energy Systems of Hawaii who will providing us with a IS-minute
PowerPoint presentation and then accepting the Committee's questions. Mr. Loux is
assisted by Sharon Monroe of KC Environmental.
Before we setup for Mr. Loux's presentation, I will accept public testimony on this item.
In addition, I will accept testimony on our other agenda items for anyone who can't wait
until the item comes up. If you can wait until the items come up we'll give you an
opportunity to testify later on but if you need to testify now please, you know, we'll just
go right ahead and do that.
On PC-I4 we have just one testifier. The others are PC-8 and if the other testifiers need
to leave I would appreciate it if you would just give me the "hi" sign or can you wait?
You need to testify? Okay. Well, then we're going to start with Rob Parsons. And Rob
is going to be testifying on PC-8. And Rob will be followed by Warren Shibuya. Good
morning, Rob.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. PARSONS: Good morning, Chair and Members. Thank you for the opportunity to address
the agenda items before us today. And I do need to be somewhere else so I would like to
testify on PC-8 which is the BlueEarth Maui Biodiesel agenda item. I'm glad that this
has finally found it's way to your agenda. Actually, I know it was on your agenda back
in July and then you had to pull it back at the request of Maui Electric. But this is the
first chance that the public has had to really begin to ask some questions about something
that's looming very large in our future here and in the very near future because they want
to be up and running in 2009.
Additionally, we've just read newspaper accounts that Hawaii Electric, and MECo, and
BlueEarth have, have determined that, that they do not need to prepare an Environmental
Impact Statement for this proposal which I find very troubling. And I'm going to focus
my testimony on asking this Committee to do one thing that I think can be expedited and
that would be for this Committee to transmit a letter to BlueEarth, and MECo, and HECo
asking a determination if in fact they are planning not to do an Environmental
Assessment, Environmental Impact Statement. I think that's critical to this project for a
number of reasons.
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I think it's also worthwhile to note that we're looking at a couple of other alternatives for
energy production here and I think that's what we should be doing with the BlueEarth
proposal rather than taking their word that this is the best choice for Maui and for
Hawaii's energy future. I've researched this extensively and I'm convinced that it is not
the road that we should be going down. You may have heard some of the inherent
problems of palm oil production in other parts of the world. It's an ecological disaster of
our time. It's ravaged rainforest in Indonesia, Malaysia, South America. You may also
have heard that the Natural Resources Defense Council has put together a procurement
policy for what they call "sustainable palm oil" and want to import tremendous amounts
of that enough to satisfy 120 million gallon a year facility here on Maui. While
concurrently there are plans for 100 million gallon facility on Oahu. These would be the
largest biodiesel oil refineries in the world.
And BlueEarth is a company that we just heard about in February which has never built a
refinery of any size. The, the red flags should be going up the pole now. As I said, well,
there's, there's, there's quite an extensive amount of literature identifying some of the
reasons why biodiesel as an equation for trying to solve our petroleum peak oil situation
is, is, is troubling. There's an article here, "Against the grain sustainable monoculture."
No thanks. This is not clean energy. The true cost of biofuels. There are number of
things on Life of the Lands website and I'm very pleased that Henry Curtis from that
esteemed organization and who I feel is one of our preeminent experts on biofuel is here,
pardon me, on, on renewable energy and sustainable energy in the State is with us today.
He cleared his schedule to be here from Honolulu.
And if you look at their website you will see that there are 50-plus national organizations
that have very strong concerns about palm oil procurement for the State of Hawaii.
There's a red light flashing in front of me so with respect to that I just want to thank you
for having a few minutes to share some of my thoughts here. Thank you so much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any questions for the testifier? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Rob, thank you for your testimony. Generally when an
Environmental Impact Statement is prepared it's done by means of trigger. What would
the trigger be for the necessity to do an EIS for this particular project?
MR. PARSONS: In, in this instance I believe there are two triggers. The stronger one is a, is a
trigger that oil refinery should trigger environmental review. And that is via an
amendment that I believe was passed by the Legislature in 2004. And I hope that you'll
ask Henry the same question because I believe he was there during those proceedings and
can tell you what the discussion was. And if you read the recent article Kalani English
concurred with Henry and said, yes, when we discussed this, this was our intent. And
what's happened is that BlueEarth is, is playing word games and is saying what they're
doing is not really refining its transesterification and that's it's more akin to making soap
is what it said in our, in our local paper.
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So, I think that I, I could a list a bunch of the concerns such as the increased traffic at the
harbor because we'll not only be importing a fuel that we're going to refine but the, the
size and scope of this is such that we would also be exporting to fuel electrical production
on Oahu. And so, the, the other trigger to answer your question is use of public funds.
And this is somewhat of a gray area. I've talked to OEQC who says that normally the
appropriation of special revenue bonds isn't considered a trigger. There, there could be a
legal test on that. I, you know, I, if you look at Chapter 343 it says any State assistance
and it doesn't have to be cash crossing the table, in the form of grant or something. I, I
believe that that would be the other trigger. But oil refinery is as clear as day so.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Rob.
MR. PARSONS : Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any other questions for the testifier?
MR. PARSONS: Thank you so much.
CHAIR BAlSA: If not, Mr. Parsons, thank you. Mr. Shibuya. Mr. Shibuya, if you'd like to
testify on all three now you can. If you only want to testify on 14 you can come back and
testify on the others later.
MR. SHIBUYA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Alrighty [sic].
MR. SHIBUYA: But that means that I can have nine minutes then.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, you signed up-MR. SHIBUYA: No, I'm kidding.
CHAIR BAlSA: --you signed up for three items so you're entitled. Yes.
MR. SHIBUYA: That's correct. I signed up-CHAIR BAlSA: You're entitled to testify on each one.
MR. SHIBUYA: That's correct. However, it's the same testimony and I just want to have an
overarching testimony here. I just try to keep, keep it very simple. And thank you very
much, Council Committee Chair, as well as Vice-Chair, and the Council Chairman here,
and Mike Molina. Thank you very much. Mahalo for letting me discuss this
sustainability for Maui County and residents. I support the various initiatives for using
renewable energy resources and reducing Maui's dependence on fossil fuels. However,
-5-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2007

replacing a fossil fuel by adding ethanol or menthol [sicj, methane are not good enough.
We must immediately invest in replacing our current consumption and dependence on
fossil fuels with bold vision type conversion programs. Please compare alternative
energy proposals that you will be hearing by using measurements of BTUs, British
Thermal Units, or kilowatt-hours instead of products.
Gasoline and propane have higher BTUs than ethanol. This means that you must use
more of the less BTU ethanol to provide equal power output. Growing and converting
biofuels crops into power is limited to, by the amount of available agricultural lands and
precious water. Remember nearly two-thirds of ethanol and ... methane energy produced
is consumed by power farm equipment and energy converting processes to produce the
ethanol or biofuels. Transporting biofuels from a foreign port still keeps us vulnerable.
I propose County Council implement aggressive programs encouraging and funding
energy and life sustaining initiatives. I am encouraging multiple sustaining initiatives
with multiple products. A one-cylinder vision is simply making biofuels for power. I
propose multiple cylinder energy and sustaining vision such as expanding on Maui the
Keauholi NELHA, which is the Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii Authority model. I
urge Maui Council initiate in converting natural ocean currents and deep ocean waters
into electricity. Extracted ocean, deep ocean water after ammonia vapor generators
generate electricity this water is desalinated, bottled, and sold, and remaining ocean water
directed to aqua farm for shrimp, lobster, bait, table fish, opihi, uni, ogo for local
consumption, exporting. This is the big vision.
I urge NELHA, the non-profit organization type venture on Maui. This multiple group
engine model provides power economic development and sustainment for Maui. We
must be creating electricity which powers aqua farming, desalinating, bottling deep ocean
water, as well as power for our communities, provide Maui food products and good jobs.
I'm not talking about junk cashier type jobs. I'm talking good technically based jobs.
Another one is of course multiple use venture is capturing atmospheric mois ... , moisture
surrounding Haleakala between 3,500 and 4,500 elevations recharging our aquifers and
high elevation reservoirs and generating hydro-electric power as water is distributed and
consumed, farmed, and used to maintain stream environments and ecosystems.
Starting this initiative today means our keiki's grandchildren have quality life. A lifestyle
will, a lifestyle which replaces today's restriction management. Of course you're familiar
with the other one converting trash to cash. We are always, on the way to this except we
are not converting the trash into electricity and cash. That's the only thing remaining
now in that equation. These multiple sustaining vision initiatives are obtainable today.
Let us start walking the sustainability talk and make sustainability happen this year.
Mahalo.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Questions for our testifier? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Mr. Shibuya, do you have a copy of your testimony?
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MR. SHIBUYA: Yes, I provided it to the clerk.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. I really find it fascinating that you're
looking at not only the fuel that we would produce to wean ourselves away from fossil
fuel but also the creation of an economically sustainable environment.
MR. SHIBUYA: Right. And, and thank you very much for recognizing this. It's a multiple
total vision for Maui. And we sometimes we focus just as Chairman Baisa mentioned in
one of her news articles that we tend to focus on the development and drilling for water.
We need to look at water in the total sense ofMaui County. And because we're looking
for housing for total Maui County.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And if! could ask you one question it would be you mentioned
about the high quality jobs related to this particular industry and I guess it could be all of
the items that are on our agenda plus the ones you mentioned. Because these are more
technical oftentimes in nature, how would the individuals who would work in this
industry receive that training and education in order to achieve this kind of employment?
MR. SHIBUYA: We have a very good school system the University of Hawaii. And we do
have a good technical background there as well as we have a lot of retired individuals
who are willing to, I speak for myself, will be willing to help. And, and I think I am
helping in some respects. I'm a free consultant for photovoltaics, and people who want
to put it in I'll tell 'em how to do it.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I really appreciate that. Because of your answer I just want to
clarify do you believe that we have right now on Maui sufficient I guess educational
facilities to be able to train people in these particular disciplines?
MR. SHIBUYA: Yes, we do. We have it today. It's not so much as Maui Community College
but University of Hawaii, College of Engineering, the College of Ocean ... , Oceans ... ,
Oceanography. Yes, we do have those technical skills. And we have the skill sets, all we
need now is the focus and we can even obtain grants for this area because the Federal
Government is very interested in this kind of sustainability type model. The State of
Hawaii put this NELHA model together as you know. It's a non-profit organization and
the State of Hawaii is doing this.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I appreciate your testimony.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Madam Chair. Good, good morning,
Mr. Shibuya. Thank you for your testimony. I know you're a very passionate advocate
for all kinds of renewable energy possibilities out there. Could I get your comments on
the BlueEarth Maui Biodiesel? I mean I guess the pros and the cons of it.
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, I haven't really looked into all the specifics. I just wanted to take an
overarching view. But I did want to have you take a look at the BTUs. BTU is British
Thermal Units. It's a standard way of measuring heat output because heat is now
generated into electricity. And if you have a lesser BTU item it's less efficient you will
need greater quantities of this to produce the same amount of kilowatt-hours. And that's
the crux of it. I think you need to look at that aspect of it. We have limited lands. We
have limited water. We need to be very judicious as to how we use these limited
resources.
And also, oh, by the way, we are still dependent on foreign markets. So we haven't
really become self-sustaining and that's the issue that I, I had. Those three issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Member Molina. Mr. Shibuya, I have a question.
MR. SHIBUYA: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR BAISA: You know for people who are watching who have not had the opportunity to
know you personally like I do, I think they might be interested in knowing a little bit
about your background. Obviously, you're, you know a great deal about this and I know
you don't like to talk about it but just so that people know who's talking. Your personal
experience, a little bit of your background. I'd appreciate that and I think people would
too then they'd understand your position.
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, I have not been doing this kind of sustainability type studies or efforts. I
have been doing aerospace type work. And of course aerospace does not have
applicability other than photovoltaics which we have to power our satellites. It's just that
now I am retired and I hope I'm not brain dead yet but-CHAIR BAISA: Me too.
MR. SHIBUYA: --I'm legally brain dead. But I can provide this type of service as, as best I can
and I'm willing to do that.
CHAIR BAISA: Don't you, don't you have some personal experience at home with energy
savings?
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MR. SHIBUYA: Yes, I do have a home that is generating, converting sun energy right now into
electricity. It's on the agreement with MECo. It's on a net metering system. And
actually now MECo is gaining more than $100 worth of free electricity from me every
month. And I, I, you know, I have done the over sizing because I plan to generate
hydrogen one of these days. And when you generate hydrogen now I have a resource
that I can use to power my car. And being a retired person I need to control my expenses
and that's one way I can do that with sunlight.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, thank you very much for coming today. And I think it's really important
that we understand that, you know, when a person like you testifies it's, there's some
personal knowledge. Thank you very much.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Anybody else questions for our testifier? If not, that's it. Thank you, Warren.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: We have a number of other people who have signed up to testify on PC-8 and
if you can wait then I'll go ahead with the presentation. Ifnot, please come forward.
(note: silence)
CHAIR BAlSA: We have Irene Bowie and she'll be testifying now followed by Mr. Shepherd.
Mr. Shepherd, did you signup?
MR. SHEPHERD: No, I haven't.
CHAIR BAlSA: Would you please while Ms. Bowie testifies?
MR. SHEPHERD: I didn't want to interrupt.
CHAIR BAlSA: Oh, it's okay. We can, you can do it later. Thank you. Good morning.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you. Thank you for hearing me before you do the presentation. Good
morning, Council Members. Maui Tomorrow believes that Maui Electric Company's
partnership with BlueEarth Biodiesel's to provide a biodiesel refinery on Maui capable of
producing 120 million gallons of fuel yearly by 2011 is a matter of concern. As
BlueEarth has no previous experience in Hawaii having never built or operated a refinery
of any size and has flip-flopped regarding the source of imported oils to be used for
biodiesel. We believe that local investment in conservation, energy efficiency, wind, and
solar are far better alternatives.
State funding and incentives to biodiesel, biofuel production would be best applied to
small gradual local efforts and not by continuing to send our money and food dollars out
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of the State. We feel the BlueEarth refinery should present detailed plans and not just a
wish list of projected benefits and that an Environmental Assessment must be done for
this project. It's well known that palm oil plantations in Indonesia, Malaysia, Sumatra,
and Borneo, and elsewhere are ecological disasters contributing to rainforest destruction,
soil erosion, water pollution, and social injustice.
As Hawaii recently took the positive step of passing the Global Warming Solutions Bill,
House Bill 678, let's now proceed carefully in the development of truly sustainable fuels
for our community and not contribute to widespread destruction of indigenous cultures
and endangered wildlife. I'd like to also add that we need to go slowly on this matter
locally because we need to examine the cost to Hawaii consumers on this. It's just one
more reason to go through the environmental process. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very
much for being here. Mr. Shepherd.
MR. SHEPHERD: Do I pass these out now or later?
CHAIR BAlSA: Someone will help you, please.
MR. SHEPHERD: Give one to ... (Inaudible) . ..
CHAIR BAlSA: Go ahead.
MR. SHEPHERD: Thank you very much. My name is Glenn Shepherd. I live up on the hill.
What I'm passing out here is something I'm getting off my desk. I've had it for a long
time. But it has to do with energy development on Maui. And it's a system that is viable.
Los Angeles has been doing it for some 40 years and it's time for us to get after it. What,
it happens to deal with development of, of gasses given off from our mount opala,
opalapala up here. It's a very simple system. You drill holes into the big pile of stuff
that we've been dumping there for 20 years plus and you tap off the gasses given off of
the, the maturation processes of all the biochemical stuff that's in there. You use that,
you run it through a turbine then you generate electricity.
Why Maui Electric hasn't done this I don't know but Maui Electric leaves me cold in
many things. Anyway, it's a process by which I think could be used on this island
certainly can in other places Los Angeles, LA, San Francisco, you name it. Now, the
other thing that is sticking me underneath the craw here is this business of growing or the
business of using palm oil to generate electricity. Now, I was in the oil business for some
31 years, ten of which I spent out in Asia which is the center of palm oil growth. Our
climates are very different. If they think they're going to develop palm oil in this climate
they better prove it first. It is not anything that's viable.
Anyway, in addition to that just like Mr. Shibuya says in different words we always look
at things from an energy in and an energy out process. If your energy is greater than your
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energy out forget it. Do something else. So, take a hard look at this ... uh. .. palm oil
business all together. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Questions for the testifier? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Glenn, thanks very much for being here and thanks for the
information. Do you know approximately how much these systems range in terms of
cost for the microturbines?
MR. SHEPHERD: I'm sorry I can't give you an informed answer but I can guess estimate at it
having been in the oil business for 31 years. That the system would today would
probably cost no more than $70,000 or $80,000 to perforate, to drill a hole, put in the
perforated pipe, and tap off the gas, something in that. It's a very simple system. An
engineer friend of mine was over here visiting the other day and he was telling me about
how he did this sort of thing on the mainland. And it's a very simple process.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And do you think that the applicability even just for our own County
purposes for generating our own electricity utilizing our waste stream, do you think that
is something that at, at least it's worthy of exploration?
MR. SHEPHERD: Well, anytime you can utilize free, free energy that's a leg up on the
situation. I've even thought of personally getting together with a few people and go
ahead try to do this but I look at the County I think, God, that's a hard outfit to deal with.
Do I want to do it at this stage in life? Nah, forget it. Let some other person do it. But
it's a very viable process. I think there's a group here from Maui is going to San
Francisco or who has already gone to San Francisco and seen this particular process. But
anyway this will give you an idea what, what's, what can be done.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions for the testifier? If not, Dr. Shepherd, thank you very
much for sharing your information with us today. Any other testifier that can't wait? If
not, we are going to take a very brief recess while we setup for the presentation from our
wood folks. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:40 a.m.
9:41 a.m.

CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. The meeting shall come back to order. And we will proceed
now with our presentation. Mr. Loux.
MR. LOUX: Good morning, Committee Chair Baisa, and Council Members. I'm James Loux
and this morning I'm going to describe our RENEWW project. And we have a little
nOIse ...
H·
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CHAIR BAISA: Menehune.
MR. LOUX: Is that better?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
MR. LOUX: This morning ... (static) . .. that noise in the mike.
CHAIR BAISA: We're going to have to take a short recess while we figure out our technical
problems. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM-14

9:42 a.m.
9:44 a.m.

BIO ENERGY SYSTEMS OF HAWAII - RENEWABLE ENERGY
FROM WOOD WASTE (e.c. No. 07-184)

CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. Back to order. And, Mr. Loux, you'll proceed with your ... (end
of tape IA) ... microphone.
MR. LOUX: Thank you. Okay. This morning I am going to describe the RENEWW project.
RENEWW is a proposed facility for obtaining renewable energy from a local source of
biomass. The source is wood waste that is recovered right here on Maui. We're talking
about two areas of concern that can have really one solution. First being an island in the
middle of the ocean we're aware of the vulnerability of having to import our energy
resources. We need renewable energy that's produced on Maui. This renewable energy
source needs to be continuously and reliably converted to a convenient form such as
electricity. A locally supplied energy source would help stabilize our energy costs.
Although they use renewable sources of energy wind and photovoltaic systems do not
actually give us energy reliability since we cannot count on them to be available when
they're needed.
The second concern is for the best management of our forests. We need to protect our
forest areas from massive fires and from invasive species yet we have limited funds to do
this. The dangers build in the forest as the dead and downed trees collect there over the
years becoming hazardous fuels to turn a small fire into a major destruction of the forest.
And invasive species develop in the areas near the forest allowing them to move on, into,
and take over the native forest areas. Both of these threats need to be removed from our
forest lands.
Looking at the last concern really is a solution. We realize that in fact there is an
abundance of wood waste available on Maui. Since the ... the best forest management
practices are to remove the hazardous fuels from the forest, we just need to add economic
value to this wood waste to help our, help us pay for its removal. The fire that burned
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through the Kula Forest Reserve in January of 2007 demonstrated the seriousness of
letting the wood waste build up in the forest. The many vertical columns of smoke point
out how this fire spread all through the Kula forest area. And the quote from the Maui
News explains why particularly about the layer of forest litter.
Remember this fire, and, and let me come back to Kula forest issue a little later.
Speaking of forest litter, a forest naturally produces a regular source of dead and downed
timber. You can see it here the downed timber is three logs deep. Right there in the
center. .. . (chuckle) . .. So, how do we add value to this waste? We could make some of
it into lumber that would give it the greatest value. There have been and continue to be
efforts to produce lumber from our forest but our forest have a limited supply of the large
diameter timber that lumber requires. Making lumber also requires a sawmill either setup
in the forest area or in a central location. Both lumber operations in the forest and the
operation of a sawmill leave waste wood and this waste wood can be turned into useful
energy. Therefore the best choice is to make as much lumber as economically possible to
convert, and, and convert the rest, the remaining wood waste into useful energy.
Depending on the type of growth in the forest this could mean that virtually all of the
wood waste could be converted into energy. Wood has been used for energy for
thousands of years and is still being used for energy today. Every pound of wood
contains thousands ofBTUs of energy. But the problems of getting the energy are in the
pollution that can be generated and then the efficiency of making that energy available.
Hundreds of years ago, Ben Franklin developed his famous wood stove to try to deal with
these very issues. Today, we continue to find better ways. We can now simply and
efficiently turn the wood into electricity. A very convenient form of energy 'cause we all
use it.
We first convert the solid wood into a gas that is burnable. U sing that gas we run an
engine that drives an electrical generator. The electricity can then be run into the Maui
Electric grid for all of Maui to use. So, how do we turn solid wood into a gas? The
process is called thermal gasification. The wood is heated with very little oxygen present
making it breakdown into basic components. The gasses that are produced from the
breakdown can then be removed and cleaned to get rid of residual tires and oils that
haven't broken down. These residual tires and oils are fed back into the process and the
clean gas runs the motor generator system to make, to generate electricity.
The same gas driven motor generator systems are used all over the world especially at oil
field locations where the gas needed to run them is readily available from the producing
oil wells but this gas of course is a synthetic gas produced from wood. What are the
advantages of this gasification over just burning the wood? Burning will release the
energy in the wood as heat. This thermal energy can be used to heat things up such as
food for cooking or water for steam. Gasification however converts the wood into a gas
which can also be burned to heat things or it can be used to fuel an engine to drive
machines or it can even be stored.
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Without some sort of scrubbing on the stack, combustion releases the unburned tires and
oils into the atmosphere while gasification contains and reprocesses them. Because it is a
closed process with little heat lost it is considerably more efficient at capturing the energy
in the wood and making it all available for us. The simplest gas fire is called a downdraft
gas fire because the fuel enters at the top and the gasses are drawn out below. This is the
design that we're talking about today. The remaining carbon is moved at the very bottom
of the gas fire. The clean gas contains between 200 and 300 BTUs of energy in every
cubic foot of the gas.
In March, the Kauai Island Utility Cooperative announced plans for a similar wood
gasification system to be added to their power generation in 2010. And here's what a
Downdraft Gasification System actually looks like. The wood chips are on the conveyor
at (1) and then the .. . (chuckle) . .. conveyor at (1), I'm sorry, and drop into the bucket at
(2), to be carried up to the top of the gas fire at (3). The wood chips is dropped into the
gas fire NO.4 where they breakdown and the, into the gas that is removed. And you can
see a pipe carrying the gas away which is right there just to the left of the elevator.
Finally, the unreacted carbon is collected and removed at the bottom of the gas fire.
These are all the essential elements of a Downdraft Gasification System.
Utilizing the waste wood on Maui has advantages as a renewable fuel. It doesn't need to
be imported since it's grown and produced entirely here on Maui. Since it replaces
burning fossil fuel using it for fuel does not add carbon dioxide to the atmosphere.
RENEWW would recover these hazardous fuels from the forest, chipping the logs and
branches at the recovery location such as tree, tree-trimming contractors do. The wood
chips would be loaded from the chipper for transport to the gasification site. At the site
they would be compressed and stored for use as fuel. The stored fuel would be gasified
to fuel the motor generators producing electricity for Maui.
So, what we're describing is a process that five days a week or less remove, recovers,
chips, transfers wood for storage at the gasification site. Enough wood is to be stored to
fuel the facility all week. The gas fires would operate seven days a week supplying
electrical generation 24-hours a day for Maui. RENEWW is more than a dream of
sustainable energy for Maui, it's planned to soon become a reality. The gasification
facility would be sited on lease land on Haleakala Ranch near Kihei. Several large
electrical loads are in the same area and there are ... multiple ways that the RENEWW
facility can interconnect with MECo, MECo at that location.
You can see the proposed, the proposed RENEWW gasification location on this slide.
It's on Haleakala Ranch ag land about two-thirds of a mile mauka of the Piilani Highway
above the Maui County Wastewater Reclamation Facility. Looking a little closer and
with the screen, the ocean on the left side of the picture you can see where the site would
be located compared to the wastewater facility. The RENEWW facility would be a
17,000 square foot building located within the ten acre site identified here.
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This rendering of the proposed facility shows the view looking south toward the ocean.
You can see what a stockpile of chipped fuel would look like. Although it can't be
determined from this rendering you would not be able to see this facility from the Piilani
Highway or residential Kihei. The structure would be a standard building design much
like many others on Maui with virtually no emissions the facility would be a good
neighbor. So where would the fuel come from to power this facility? Many of the forest
are on Haleakala Ranch. Most of these forested areas have reasonable access since they
are part of the Ranch.
The Kula Reserve has around, Forest Reserve, has around 2,500 acres of forest. We are
working with the Department of Forestry and Wildlife to remove standing dead timber
that was left when the forest burned in 2000 ... , in January 2007. This effort would allow
better fire control and also support the replanting of these areas. The initial fire control
related recovery which is from only a small area of the 2,500 acre forest should provide
enough fuel to produce electricity everyday for over a year.
Other potential resources would come from the West Maui Mountain Watershed
Partnership, Ulupalakua Ranch forest below the Kula Forest Reserve, and Haleakala
National Park, which has need to remove invasive species that encroach on the Park land.
Of course in the Kula Forest Reserve and especially in the National Park we'll need to
properly address regulatory issues to be able to recover these hazardous fuels from these
areas. This picture shows some dense forest areas how the fuel can accumulate in the
forest floor and how even before it falls significant amounts of dead timber can still be
standing in a forest.
Haleakala Ranch has many stands of trees on their ranch, range lands and many forest,
major forest areas that border their range. Eventually, we expect to also be working with
the National Park and help control invasive species that continue to encroach on Park
lands. Speaking of invasive species Wattle trees have invaded most of Kula over the last
100 years. Wattle is officially a noxious weed because of its ability to expand its territory
through seeds and basil shoots. As everyone upcountry knows Wattle grows up rapidly
in clumps 20 to 40 feet high. So, it's easily recovered and because of this rapid growth
it's plentiful all over Up country Maui. We've tested it and found it makes a good fuel for
the gas fire.
As we've said waste wood is an abundant source of renewable fuel grown right here on
Maui. Gasification is an established, efficient, and non-polluting process that can convert
the energy available in wood into electricity. Wood gasification as we described can add
as much as eight mega watts of renewable and sustainable electrical generation to the
MEeo grid. The renewable pro ... , the RENEWW project is being developed by Bio
Energy Systems of Hawaii. A Hawaii corporation with ownership and direction here on
Maui.
The gasification system was developed in Spokane, Washington where there is an
operational demonstration facility. We have experience in the gasification process both
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here on Maui and in Spokane. We are in negotIatIOns with MECo for the Power
Purchase Agreement and have initiated the zoning and air permitting processes needed to
make the RENEWW project a reality in 2008. Finally, adding this renewable power
production facility on Maui would help stabilize our electricity cost. Thank you for
taking the time to hear about the RENEWW project this morning. After a short recess
I'll be glad to answer any questions.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Loux. And the Chair will call a very brief recess
while we put the screen up and then we'll entertain ... questions from the Members.
Thank you.
MR. LOUX: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:58 a.m.
9:59 a.m.

CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. Meeting come back to order. Again, thank you very much,
Mr. Loux. That was a very interesting presentation. Members, questions for the
presenter? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much, James. That was really an excellent
presentation. The question that was asked earlier in, in terms of the BTUs, how much
energy does it actually take in order to produce this energy. And I believe the previous
testifier had said that if you're expending more energy than you're generating it wasn't a
good deal. So, could you kind of explain that in terms of the presentation you made.
MR. LOUX: Yes. Certainly, biomass is a lower energy density than fossil fuels. That's reality.
And, yeah, that's always a concern but the gasification is an effec ... , efficient system to
recover that energy from the wood. As far as the cost of energy to actually recover the
wood from the forest and transport it that turns out to be less than 10 percent, around a
few percent really of the energy that's in the wood to actually recover it from the forest
and return it to the site. So, obviously, this system has to be efficient in energy or it
wouldn't be efficient in dollars, right. And in fact, you know, the reality is that, although
fossil fuel has a high energy density since we're in the middle of the Pacific Ocean, the
cost of getting all the fossil fuel here is much higher than it is on the mainland. And so
the competitive balance between recovering biomass here and using it in Hawaii as
opposed to bringing in fossil fuel is very favorable here in Hawaii, again, because we're
in the middle of the Pacific Ocean.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and have you had I guess a cost benefit analysis in terms of
what you just described where you look at the, the landing cost for the fuels that we do
import and then, then a cost comparison?
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MR. LOUX: That's correct. Obviously, in terms of what we would sell the power to Maui
Electric, we have to look at whether or not our cost are lower than the cost that they
would normally have to develop for their own imported fuel. And in fact it's
competitive. Obviously, on the mainland where you can see much lower costs if you had
to have the high cost that we have here it would be very difficult to operate.
But, you know, as an example in the northwest there are a lot of forest areas but the
electricity is also very inexpensive running like five, five cents a kilowatt hour as
opposed to 25 cents a kilowatt hour. So there's a big difference in cost. Obviously, if it
cost as much to recover the, the wood and, and transport it as it does here it would not
work very well at that, in that location. But it works well here because the cost of
recovery and the cost of transportation is well below the cost of bringing oil into this
area.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I appreciate that. One other question and that would be in terms of
the I guess the health of the forest or the conservation aspect of this which you touched
upon. In I guess in the big picture what we're looking at is the loss of huge stands of
forest when we have these kinds of events. Sometimes they can't be avoided if it's a
lightning strike or something of that sort. But what has the experience been I gather on
the mainland with the prevention oflarge-scale fires such as we saw in Kula?
MR. LOUX: Yeah, the, the US Forest Service is very interested in the same types of
management issues that we're describing here. In other words, I've, I've given
presentations on the mainland about this same issue ... (chuckle) . .. because obviously
the Forest Service there is promoting the idea that, that they need to take the small
diameter lumber out of the forest because it's a fire hazard and as referred to as hazardous
fuels. And that's the same issue that we have here.
Essentially, you take a small forest fire and you turn it into a major conflagration that,
that destroys the forest. And they've had obviously some pretty significant forest fires on
the mainland that's what's motivated them. We have the same issues here as we've
witnessed over the last several years as the, as the litter and the small diameter lumber
builds up in the forest it definitely builds a hazardous fuel issue that we're really working
with the Forest Service in terms of improving their ability to manage their forest. That's
their interest and ours.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I really appreciate that. I guess having lived in an area where
we did have a lot of decayed matter in I guess our, our little woods that where I grew up,
I can testify to the fact that it actually, the layers of I guess the build up it actually acted
like a peat fuel.
MR. LOUX: Yeah.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And it kept burning far longer. You know we, we certainly got in
trouble for building a fire where we shouldn't have built it when I was younger. But
anyway thank you very much for all your information.
MR. LOUX: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mr. Loux.
MR. LOUX: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And thank you for that very informative presentation. I take it
you've had discussions with the Department of Land and Natural Resources about your
proposal?
MR. LOUX: Well, the Department of Forestry and Wildlife, right, they're the ones that are
responsible for the forest, right?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
efforts?

Uh-huh.

And they, and they very ... supportive of your

MR. LOUX: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... (Inaudible) . ..
MR. LOUX: Yeah. We're working with them both here on, on Maui and in Honolulu.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. LOUX: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and to collect this waste you will need their assistance as
well or will this I guess only the members of your company be doing all
the... (Inaudible) . ..
MR. LOUX: Yeah. Well, basically, we need their agreement to do it. Basically, it's a win-win
deal where, you know, we don't, they don't charge us and we don't charge them, right.
... (chuckle). .. So, basically we're doing a service for the Forest Service to help them
do their job better.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And, and in terms of employment do you foresee this
adding additional jobs to the community?
MR. LOUX: Absolutely.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay.
MR. LOUX: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. LOUX: Both activity in terms of fuel recovery but that is very similar to what's actually
going on already with the landscaping operations but it would be a little more expanded.
And of course then there's both development and operation at the plant. I would expect
that this facility is going to grow in terms of the technology that it can
accomplish .. .improve the efficiency.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And what other jurisdictions for example you
mentioned the northwest, any other areas in the United States you have I guess
companies similar to yours doing work like this?
MR. LOUX: Well, actually, the, the best biomass areas are really in the, the northwest or like in
the, some of areas of the southwest where they do have forest, and in the southeast where
they have a lot of forest. And there are actually gasification facilities presently being
setup in the southeast. There's one right outside of Atlanta Georgia you might have read
about.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
MR. LOUX: That was originally developed I guess in the, in the Vermont area and now they're
implementing it there. But the major areas where we have gasification of wood is in
Europe actually. It's much more popular there because of the higher cost of fossil fuel in
Europe. And they've done this and are very interested in this type of application for
many years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, thank you very much.
educational process for me as well and I think it--

It's been a good

MR. LOUX: Okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --helps the community understand this process a lot more too.
Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina. A couple of questions that I've been asked about
this when it was put on the agenda, the most common question I got is what's going to
happen when they run, run out of dead wood, the trees that are, you know, on the ground
right now?
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MR. LOUX: Uh-huh. Yeah. Of course there are two answers. And one is that, that, what we're
looking at here in terms of the fuel source is the entire island as opposed to just one
forest. So I mean there are a lot of different forested areas and the one I mentioned in this
presentation I tried to get a broader view but there are more even then what are
mentioned there. And the, as you drive around if you start looking for dead wood it's
amazing how much you would find. There's a lot of it.
The other thing that I need to mention is that we talk about invasive species and, and the
Black Wattle is an invasive species. And Black Wattle is a large source that we are
expecting to use both in terms of invasive, invasive areas on existing ranch lands and also
on the National, the National and the State Forest. Right now, if you look at the Kula
forest area you see a lot of Wattle approaching and getting into it. So, all that Wattle is
basically available and needs to be removed.
The other issue is that we expect to make this system more efficient. Gasification by its
nature is very efficient but there are more ways that we can improve the efficiency. And
as we get more efficient that means, you know, we get more energy out of the same fuel
or we can use less fuel, right. And that allows us to extend the life of the whole process.
So, in the end it's a balance, right. Plus it gives us an advantage to, to be a development
in terms of moving the technology forward so we can be on the front end of it.
CHAIR BAlSA: Great. We have some Wattle in front of us that's blocking our view plane that
you can have. The other thing is everybody wants to know in a... you know any kind of
process, what will, will there be a residue and if there is what do you do with it?
MR. LOUX: The only actual residue would be the carbon that is not processed, right, and it
comes out essentially as what's known as activated carbon. And there are a couple of
different possibilities for using that carbon. Throughout the world, you know, they, they
use it for different purposes but of course as activated carbon it's a filter medium, right,
that has a limited amount of, you know, if you're going to sell this as a filter medium
you'd probably have to ship it somewhere.
But then there are other things we can do with it. Among other things of course it could
be added to the, to the material that's already being processed at HC&S to produce
power, right, and I've talked to them about that possibility. Another possibility is to
include it in the soil as a, to some level as a nutrient for the soil. And they do that in
different locations. So there are a lot of different ways to use that.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. That's always an important issue.
MR. LOUX: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: You know we don't want to be worrying about what do we do with the stuff
that we're going to create to get rid of one problem we don't need another.
20
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MR. LOUX: Right.
CHAIR BAISA: So, thank you very much. Any other questions? Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just have a few, please.
CHAIR BAISA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
considered firm power.

I believe we heard correctly, you mentioned that this

IS

MR. LOUX: It is firm power. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
power issues or concerns?

So, so there's no issue with the utility regarding standby

MR. LOUX: Well, as firm power that means it's produced all the time, right, it's not-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You can do it ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. LOUX: --you know the problem with wind and photovoltaics when the sunshine or when
the wind blows, right, so that's as available.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. LOUX: But this is firm power so it can be produced all the time, anytime that that MECo
needs it. Okay. We're also referring to it as dispatchable which is part of the issue
because obviously MECo needs a lot more power during the day and a lot less at night.
So we can also work with that side of it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This system is geared for any type of wood related products?
It's not just wood chips.
MR. LOUX: Yes. Actually, we have another, we have, you know, Hawaii Truss actually makes
trusses here on the island and they process the wood to make the truss and they have a
very efficient system but they do produce some wood waste and we've talked with them
about using their wood waste.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, cardboard, newspapers, those type of wood products.
MR. LOUX: Wood is a very nice fuel for gasification. Now, the gasification is very efficient
but one disadvantage is that whatever goes in stays in, right. So, wood is a very clean
fuel. It doesn't have any other chemicals in it besides, you know, the ... the hydrocarbons
that make up the wood. No sulfur, you know, no phosphates, things like that. But if you
take things like cardboard or other municipal solid waste issues then you start to face the
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issues about other types of contaminants that are in there. So you have to deal with that.
Okay.
Now, gasification can deal with that but we're starting out here with a clean fuel called
wood .... (chuckle). .. And as we develop the system we would expect to be able to add
in other things like cardboard which would be the first step.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, Bio Energy Systems of Hawaii what is that really?
Is that, do you have any relationship to the utilities?
MR. LOUX: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You're a subsidiary, you're a venture partner?
MR. LOUX: Right. It's a Hawaii corporation formed by myself and people in Spokane.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Are you required by the Public Utilities Chairman
Mr. Caliboso to deal with his decision order regarding competitive bidding? This is, goes
through that process or does ...
MR. LOUX: Yeah. We submitted our, our application to Maui Electric before the competitive
bidding was resolved. Okay. And so we are exempt from that at the moment, right, and
we are negotiating with Maui Electric based on that. So, we are not a utility and we are
not presently controlled by the competitive bidding.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But you want to get. ..
MR. LOUX: We do have to sign an agreement with, with the utility of course to sell the power.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You used to work for the utility.
MR. LOUX: I did work for the Maui Electric many, several years ago. Yes. In the energy
conservation part of it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So what is the, at, at the build out what is the potential
ratepayer savings we can anticipate?
MR. LOUX: Well, like I said the, the energy right now as, as we calculate it would, would be
competitive with the level of cost that, that Maui Electric has. So, one, one advantage
would be that our cost of producing the power is going to be tied to the cost of living in
Hawaii not to the cost of oil shipped anywhere else. But it does start out at the level that
we have here today. So, our expectation is that we probably won't see any immediate
savings but we would see savings over time. So, basically what the statement is we
stabilize the cost, right, so that it doesn't go up and down with the price of oil.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know but for most people like myself, you know, that's
not what, what we want to hear.
MR. LOUX: You want to see it lowered, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We want to hear five cents of kilowatt savings, you know, we
want it quantified for us.
MR. LOUX: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, and that's not be, able to be done today?
MR. LOUX: It doesn't appear at this point because of what we described, right, the cost of
actually recovering, and transporting the fuel, and building the facility, and you know the
people who spend the money expect to be able to recover the cost of building the plant.
So, I mean there is a cost to doing this project. Right now, once you get the, once you get
the project in and operating then we would expect--say, say we improve the efficiency
which I thoroughly expect to do then we could potentially see a lower cost. So, in other
words, what I'm trying to say is this separates the production of this power from the cost
of oil from now on.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is this something already in our current IRP?
MR. LOUX: Actually, it is. Maui Electric put in a, not specifically, but they put in an area, an
amount of I think it was eight megawatts or ten megawatts to be generated by a
renewable facility or a separate facility. And it was the timing as I remember it was
around 2008 to 2010.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What kind of land use, you mentioned land use processing,
what kind of land use processing do you need?
MR. LOUX: The facility is actually located on ag land. We're using agricultural products and
we're producing the power for the community. This may require a Special Use Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Or industrial zoning.
MR. LOUX: Well, yeah, for at least power production. Normally, if, if you had a farm and, and
you use your agricultural products and produce power even if you sell it to the utility it
would still be considered an agricultural use.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Loux. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any further questions for the testifier? Member Johnson.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes .... (end of tape IB) ... talking about cost savings I noticed in
your presentation you talked about I guess a delay in actually having to construct our, you
know, power generation plant or hopefully a delay in doing that which is a huge expense
which of course would have to then be thrust upon ratepayers. So, do you, do you have
any idea of what the avoided cost might be on a temporary basis for the ratepayers not to
have to have that burden added onto-MR. LOUX: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --what we already pay?
MR. LOUX: That's a good question. I appreciate the fact you, you asked that because in fact,
yes, that is a cost savings. What we're doing is the investors are actually building this
plant so the ratepayers don't have to, right, and we're not adding to the cost of the
electricity we're just staying at the same cost. So there is actually an immediate cost
savings in that, in that sense. I don't know what the number is. I... MECo could
answer, answer that question better for you. But it would definitely delay the need for
MECo to build another plant.
In other words, if we don't do this it will add a burden onto MECo to have to add a plant
which they are presently saying they don't need to because they're hoping that we will in
fact do this.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, you know, if, if we would have at some point
access to that information if you could work with MECo to help get us that I think that
will also help people to understand that you know nothing seems to be going down in
cost. It always seems to going up but at least if we can stabilize the monthly utility bills
or get them to decrease over time-MR. LOUX: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --I think that would be really important because I know there are
many people that were concerned about the construction of the additional power plant
and where it would be and we all have to pay for it so.
MR. LOUX: Well, that's right. That's right. And, and obviously every delay in having to build
capital facilities lowers or at least stabilizes the cost.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Or at least it would not give justification to return to the PUC to ask
for another rate increase.
MR. LOUX: That's true.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR BAISA: Other questions for our testifier, our presenter really?
MR. LOUX: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: If not, Mr. Loux, thank you very, very much. And we'd also like to thank
Sharon Monroe who came with Jamie. And thank you very much for a very interesting
and informative presentation.
MR. LOUX: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for the opportunity to present it. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Well, I'd like to just move on here and like complete our testimony if
it's okay with you without a break, Members. If not, also without objection I would like
to file, not file but defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: No objections. Thank you very much.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Our second and third agenda items today are related. I initiated PC-8
upon my receipt of correspondence from Ed Reinhardt, President of Maui Electric
Company regarding the BlueEarth Maui Biodiesel project. I then generated the PC-I4
item to allow for a broader discussion on all policy issues relating to biofuel related
projects that currently exist or may be proposed for Maui County. I have scheduled these
items today primarily to allow the public and the Committee Members an opportunity to
share their views regarding the production and use ofbiofuels in Maui County.
There is no legislative action pending before us today unless we choose to do so. I note
that biomass energy is a broad term that includes biodiesel, biofuels, and some other
forms of renewable energy. Because PC-IS is the broader agenda item we can consider
filing PC-8 today as future discussions about BlueEarth may be conducted under the
PC-IS heading. Without objection, I would like the Committee to consider both of these
related items jointly today. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Before we get into our deliberations we will accept public
testimony on these two items. Without objection the Committee will now accept public
testimony on PC-IS Biomass Energy, and PC-8 BlueEarth Maui Biodiesel. And our first
testifier will be Lance Holter. And he'll be testifying on PC-8. And he'll be followed by
Henry Curtis. Good morning, Lance.
25

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2007

MR. HOLTER: Good morning. Good morning, Council. Thanks for hearing this important
issue. I turned in as testimony a letter that we had written to HECo August 18th to which
there has been no response. It's our hope that you might help also to generate a response
from Hawaii Electric regarding the request that we have an Environmental Assessment
for their BlueEarth facility. The facility on Oahu is completing an EA and I think it
should be done here also for this plant.
Harper's Magazine I don't know if you're familiar with the Harper's Index but it says in
this month's issue it says, out of 121 biofuel refineries 57 have been cited for pollution
since 2004. So this to me is a, is a red flag that all is not perfect with the biofuel
production. Over the last year there's been 100 percent increase in biofuel especially,
particularly palm oil, 100 percent increase in the cost of palm oil primarily generated by
China which could eat up all the palm oil produced in the world.
Also, there's 100 percent increase in cost of biofuel has resulted in devastation in the
world's tropical rainforests. What this would translate to us as consumers we can only
imagine. We will not have a permanent cost of imported palm oil. It would continually
rise as the demand in the world rises. We need to, to study the impacts on our
infrastructure and this is what our letter represents to the industry is in a detailed some of
the proposed impacts on our communities and our infrastructure in Hawaii as, and most
importantly in Maui.
We need to invest in demonstration crops. We should make this a priority. The State and
Department of Ag should invest in demonstration crops. And by investing in this
research then we'll be able to tell what we can actually produce as far as local feedstocks.
But to say that we're going to use local feedstocks to run 120 million gallon biofuel plant
I think is, is jumping the gun here. I've also collected a letter from the Campaign Against
Importing Palm Oil to Make Biodiesel for Electricity. There's over 50 groups have
signed onto this letter to ask the State and HECo to reexamine its use of imported palm
oil. There's also been a letter, 7,000-plus letters have been sent to Governor Lingle. I'm
going to include this with my testimony. And I would please ask you to reexamine our
use ofbio ... , of palm oil and study this more in-depth. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Questions for our testifier? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Lance, thanks very much for the information. One of the
questions I guess and, you know, I've read through the letter I guess the question is on
the subject of, you know, biodiesel as a fuel. Mr. Shepherd addressed BTUs. I think also
the earlier testified, testifier also addressed the production of British Thermal Units in
terms of efficiency. So, in a lot of the literature I haven't really found that kind of
discussion taking place. Do you have any knowledge of the efficiency of using the
biofuels?
MR. HOLTER: You know Kelly King would be able to give you that information. They've
examined the issue for dozens of years. I'm, I'm not specifically an expert in that area. I
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do know it burns cleaner. However the problem with palm oil I think is the biggest issue.
I'm not against biodiesel. I think biodiesel is a clean fuel. I'd love to see biodiesel at use
in our harbors. It would be healthier for our, our longshoremen and so forth. But it's the
issue of how do we make it. And I'd, I'd like to see it as a local crop, as a local
production. But I don't think we can sustain a 120 million gallon plant. I think we, we
need to take a step to find out how do we do this.
The BTU exchange it's better than ethanol but when you consider what palm oil does as
far as burning crop, not burning indigenous forests, burning millions of years worth of
peat, peat bogs and then relea ... , releasing the C02 in the atmosphere. It becomes the
third largest pro ... , producer of C02'S on earth. This is ahead of the United States, I
mean this is after United States then China then Indonesia .. .uh. .. burning the, the
indigenous forests. So that's the, that's the danger. But biodiesel is a cleaner fuel no
doubt about it.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I don't really have a problem with the conversion
of, you know, our fats, oils, grease-MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --into, you know, that type offield too because it's also dealing with
what we dealt with earlier, you know, where you're taking waste or you're taking
potential waste-MR. HOLTER: Exactly.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --and then you're converting it into some useable product so.
MR. HOLTER: I do know there's studies. There's, there's a promotion for using Jatropha in
Waianae. There's also a promotion for using planting palm oil plantations in the Big
Island. But none of these have any succ ... , any numbers other than the HARC report
about what could be produced, you know, in our soils, and these under best conditions is
the HARC report. For us I know also that HC&S has not, is not intending on growing
palm oil. They're looking more in the aspects of sugar cane. And I know that the, I was
interviewed by the Hawaii Energy consulting firm to seek what, what we felt about
cellulosic ethanol in Hawaii. And this is a firm that produces stalkup, produce a 660 page
international backed study on biofuels in the nation, in the world and especially North
and South America. And it was about cellulosic ethanol was what their, their basic
concern is. And that's convert ... , converting, using, basing it on the model in Brazil and
using our sugar industry to produce cellulosic essanol [sic] ethanol.
I, I, just for your information, they were really interested in why Hawaii still uses an
antiquated variety of sugar cane instead of a new variety that's being used in Brazil
which doesn't need to be burned. It can be harvested and turned into cellulosic
essanol [sic] ethanol and at the same time produce sugar. So, they were very interested in
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that. But this is a group, I mean I, I downloaded the, the study. It's that thick. And this
is agrofuel is looking at Hawaii in a very serious, serious way.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thanks very much, Lance.
MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any other questions? If not, the Chair would like to, like to ask a question.
MR. HOLTER: Sure, Gladys.
CHAIR BAlSA: You know I asked earlier of Mr. Loux and I'd like to ask you. Is there a
residue or a product that is left when one creates this pile [sic] palm fuel and oil turns it
into something-MR. HOLTER: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: --into energy?
MR. HOLTER: There will be residues. It's glycerin and there hasn't been a proved [sic] proven
use for the residue. Ifwe're going to, if we're going to refine 120 million gallons of palm
oil for example we're going to have glycerin as a leftover product. I've heard offhand
comments, oh, we'll just burn those in our power plants. But the studies on glycerin it's
not conclusive. I think we have an expert here on bio ... , biodiesel. But that's going to be
one of the main residues is this glycerin. I also understand on the world market there's a
glut and I don't know where we're going to put it. You know it's, they, I heard some of
the statements that it's going to become a, it will be used for soap making. We've
already got plenty of glycerin. And it's going to be a issue of where we put it.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. I, I know that we're just beginning, you know, to study
and hear and learn about all this. I'm sure there will be many more meetings.
MR. HOLTER: Yeah. I just hope that you could ask HECo to do an EIS or EA. I'm, I'm sure
that they will understand the need for it upon further investigation into the issue.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. And thank you very much for being here.
MR. HOLTER: Thank you. Thank you, Gladys.
CHAIR BAlSA: Our next testifier is Henry Curtis. And Mr. Curtis will be followed by Bryan
Collins. Good morning, Mr. Curtis.
MR. CURTIS: Good morning, Chair Baisa, and Council Members. And thank you for holding
this hearing. I'm Henry Curtis, Executive Director of Life of the Land. We're a
37-year-old environmental group. And the only environmental group that intervenes
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before the Public Utilities Commission. I have represented the organization in a dozen
dockets. Last December, we were in a hearing with Hawaiian Electric where they were
proposing a new power plant in Campbell Industrial Park to be powered by biofuels.
What surprising about that is we were the only ones to bring in a biofuels expert and the
utility refused to cross examine that person.
We proposed alternatives based on Ocean Thermal Energy Conversion, which is a base
load energy system, and Seawater Air Conditioning, which is a base load displacement
system, and energy efficiencies and wave energy systems. I think two, two questions
I've heard pop up over and over again here are (1) how clean is the technology? If
anybody gets up here and tells you they have an energy system that does not produce
waste you should show them the door. All energy systems produce negative impacts.
The second is BTUs. And what we really need to do is look at the life cycle BTU. For
example if we look at this building it required energy to build it, it requires energy to
power it, it requires energy to tear it down. If you limit the discussion to just one aspect
of that you are bound to get it wrong. Also profit and efficiency have very little to do
with each other. Because for example if you import, if you mow down a rainforest in
Indonesia and you grow palm oil for biodiesel and you import it into the United States
and add a small amount of gasoline to it, the Federal Government will give you a dollar a
gallon subsidy even if you export it for someone else to use. That is a highly inefficient
system and yet it can be very profitable.
We believe strongly that an Environmental Assessment or Environmental Impact
Statement is needed for this project. If we grow the crops here we will use a lot ofland.
We will use a lot of water. We will use labor and right now we have very low
unemployment levels. And this Council is wrestling with Bill 13 dealing with water
usage. And all of these things have to be looked at. And the, and the State passed a law
in 2004 that sought to update the Environmental Impact Statement law because it really
needed an overhaul and they were afraid that giant projects were escaping.
And the Supreme Court in the Superferry ruling, the 104-page decision said there is both
the letter of the law and the spirit of the law. And the Superferry had, had problems in
both aspects. The, this project will also have the same kind of problems if an
Environmental Assessment is not done because it's the largest biodiesel refinery in the
United States using one of the dirtiest fuels. And if that doesn't trigger an EA nothing
will. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA:
Johnson.

Thank you very much, Mr. Curtis.

Questions for the testifier?

Member

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much, Henry, for coming today. I, I believe
you just addressed one of the questions that I had asked Mr. Parsons earlier which was
about under Chapter 343 what would the trigger be. And if you could just be very
specific about what the environmental trigger is.
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MR. CURTIS: 343-5(A)(9) was enacted in 2004 which said that all oil refineries trigger an EIS
or EA environmental review. And this is clearly an oil refinery. Vegetable oil is oil and
it's being refined.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And because other references were made to the legislative intent of
that particular bill, the discussion I guess during the Committee meetings as to legislative
intent supports that. Is that correct?
MR. CURTIS: Yes. The Bill originally came out of the House and had to do with the, the
accepting agency and that kind of stuff but Senator English in the Senate modified it to
talk about the kinds of projects that were escaping environmental review. I think
Hamakua Energy is a, a great example because it's a facility north of Honokaa along the
shoreline, but because it was private money on private lands it escaped review. The
intent was to make these large projects included within the law. And after the Senator
modified it, it sat there for over a year with no descent. So, it's, it's not like we have a
descenting opinion to turn to. We don't.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And you also touched on I guess an issue that of course the
Superferry example of an Environmental Impact Statement not being done and then the
problems now that we're faced with. Are you saying that this would be potentially a
similar situation?
MR. CURTIS: No. I think it would be far worse. We have a major problem with climate
change right now. And it was interesting during the hearing I was just talking about with
the utility, we had utility engineer after utility engineer take the stand and say, climate
change I've heard of it. It's not my field of expertise. I don't, I don't really an opinion it.
And it was 18th out of 18 HECo witnesses who took the stand and said okay it's a
problem. Right now, we have heard allegations that biofuels are good in terms of climate
impacts. The only studies referred to are very partisan authors no peer review. That kind
of statement saying I'm going to make money from this, and believe me there are no
climate impacts, is really has to be put out in the wash.
We need, just as non-point source pollution was the last area covered with water, with
water contamination. The climate impacts from agriculture are the hardest to measure.
Because if you look at all the carbon in the atmosphere and all the carbon in vegetation
that is less than the carbon in the soil. So, if you don't count soil erosion you're not
counting half the carbon or 60 percent of the carbon in the equation. And when you don't
count that much you're bound to make mistakes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I know everybody is, is, you know, talking about your carbon
footprint too about what we impact just as human beings. Because the Environmental
Protection Agency I guess regulates a lot of the emissions that come out of plants, if
they're industrial plants, I'm sure refineries would have similar regulations probably
through EPA, Department of Health, and I believe there's one other entity that also
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sometimes reviews these. But is, is there something within the Federal regulation that
would also compel these I guess the people who intend to build this plant, is there some
kind of clout that they would have that would also give additional credence to what you
are requesting?
MR. CURTIS: I think if a new either Republican or Democrat were to take the President spot
who cared about climate change there would be. The current holder of the office does
not. So, it would have to be at the State level.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And I, I guess because the plant overall would have
emissions, I know that oftentimes certain levels of emissions are permitted into the
environment and then if you're caught going over a certain threshold you simply pay an
increased fine. Are you familiar with that-MR. CURTIS: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --policy?
MR. CURTIS: And, and one, one of the problems is different crops will produce different
emissions. So, it's not just like you can say I was doing sugar cane yesterday. I'll do
Jatropha tomorrow because there are hundreds of different molecules in each. And as
you make the biodiesel the biodiesel has different characteristics. So, you have to
account for what crop you're burning. And, yes, right now in many cases the penalty is
not worth, in some cases, it's more profitable to pay the penalty and in other cases it's
more profitable to shift the impact through externalities to the, to other, others.
We asked the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs on biofuels whether they
were concerned with just ratepayer impacts or taxpayer impacts. We figured if your rates
went down but your taxes went up you could get screwed in the process. And the
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs said they were not concerned with
taxpayer impacts only ratepayer impacts. And hopefully when we're talking about the
cost of electricity we're talking about lowering the total payment.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and you're also making arguments too from a moral
perspective about what we're creating I guess in other countries in order to produce what
would be fueling our I guess our power plant here.
MR. CURTIS : Yeah. Because climate change is I think the first, greenhouse gases is the first
thing that we realized that if we put up and let it float off the island we're affecting the
atmosphere. And the total amount in the atmosphere worldwide is what's going to
impact climate.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:
Thank you.

Okay.

Thanks very much, Henry, I appreciate your being here.
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MR. CURTIS: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions for our testifier? If not, thank you very, very much.
MR. CURTIS: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you for being here. And our next testifier will be Bryan Collins. Good
morning, Bryan.
MR. COLLINS: Good morning. And thank you, Council Members, for beginning this
discussion. And it's a very important discussion to have. My name is Bryan Collins and
I work for Pacific Biodiesel. We've been here on the Island of Maui for over ten years
making biodiesel from waste cooking oil.
CHAIR BAISA: Bryan, can you speak closer to the mike.
MR. COLLINS: Yeah, I'd be happy to.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
MR. COLLINS: Okay. Were you able to hear my previous statements?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. COLLINS: Okay. So, we'll, to begin with I would also like to encourage you to require an
EIS or Environmental Assessment of this project. We are very knowledgeable about
what it takes to bring in oil, turn it into biodiesel, and deal with the waste products that
result from that. And it's important that you understand that you'll have an enormous
amount of shipping coming into your harbors, and a lot of trucking going to the plant
both to bring in the raw cooking oil or, excuse me, raw palm oil they plan to use and also
the methanol and chemical reactants that they'll need to actually make the process.
Also, one of the biggest waste products of biodiesel is glycerin. And you can roughly
estimate that you're going to get about eight to ten percent of the total volume of oil you
use is going to be converted into glycerin when it comes out. Dealing with that glycerin
is a major issue. Largely because over the years as the biodiesel industry has rapidly
expanded they've basically created a glut for glycerin around the world. In fact
companies that 20 years ago were in the business of making glycerin as a raw material
and selling it are now closing their doors because there's simply too much glycerin
available.
So, MECo and BlueEarth are really going to have an issue with what to do with this
glycerin and they've yet to give a good answer as to where it's going to go and how it's
going to be dealt with. So, for those reasons I encourage you to do the EIS. The final
thing that I'd like to really encourage you guys to take a look at is basically as a producer
32

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2007

of biodiesel I'd like to share with you the fact that not all biodiesel is in fact
environmentally beneficial. Simply because it has bio in front of it does not mean that
you're actually protecting the environment or ultimately producing a lower C02 footprint
or pollution footprint for that matter or even necessarily using less petroleum. Because
there is an intense amount of petroleum that's used in the agricultural process and there's
a C02 footprint to that.
Essentially, in order for biodiesel to work from an environmental standpoint the
feedstock is all important. I very much encourage you to check out the website
hawaiibiofuel.org. This is a website put together independently of us by concerned
citizens here in Maui which addresses a lot of these issues because I'm not going to have
the time to go through them today. Essentially, there have been studies done particularly
on Indonesia palm oil and what we've realized is that the total C02 amount produced by
getting that oil grown in Indonesia or Malaysia, shipping it to another country, and
converting it into biodiesel is according to one Dutch study on the order of three to times
... um. . . it creates three to times more C02 than using conventional petroleum. It's
actually a negative benefit.
So, I very much encourage you to consider that. And finally I hope that you will support
us in our efforts along with HARC and people at the University of Hawaii both on Oahu
and here to begin to do the research that we need in order to figure out what crops will
actually work. And this will require patience and continued study. We're not ready to
jump in both feet by creating huge power plants yet. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Bryan. Questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
very much for coming.
MR. COLLINS: Okay.
CHAIR BAlSA: And we've had two other people sign up. We'd like to call Maury King. And
Maury will be followed by Susan Douglas. Good morning, Maury.
MR. KING: Good morning. Hi. Thanks for having me and thanks for having this hearing. I'm
sorry I'm late and I don't know if any of this will be redundant. I just really would like to
speak to environmental concerns ... (end of tape 2A) ... about importing feedstocks that
will take fuel to get here and perhaps harm the countries they're coming from. And just
to ask us to be really, really careful if we're trying to work towards sustainability on
Maui that we pay attention to the rest of the planet while we're doing it. And just move
through the process asking a lot of really hard questions and not, not leaving out any
important information that might really turn out later to be some sort of a boondoggle or
something that we might regret that we did. So, I appreciate all the hard work that you do
and will continue to do. I just want us to really make sure we look carefully at, at where
we're going to get the fuel to run the plant and make sure that it's environmentally sound
decisions that are made around it. And I've submitted most of this in an e-mail to you
yesterday. Thanks for listening.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. And we did get your e-mail. Questions for Mr. King?
If not, thank you very much.
MR. KING: Thank you for all the hard work you guys do.
CHAIR BAISA: Our next testifier will be Susan Douglas and she'll be the last testifier unless
anyone else would like to sign up. Good morning, Susan.
MS. DOUGLAS: Good morning. I also want to apologize for being late just because we had
other things to do. But I feel this is really important. I'm speaking as an individual. And
I founded the Maui Clean Air Coalition in '97, which has been minimally acting since but
we're still holding the vision. And I just wanted to encourage all of, all of you if you
haven't seen it yet to get to rent the DVD called Nobelity which is a movie about some of
the top minds that exist in the world today talking about what they see are the solutions to
the, to the major problems on the earth. And one of them who I can't remember right
now who said it was talking about solar basically being that we could, we could cover the
deserts with solar panels. And as Maury suggested in his e-mail that we could cover the
rooftops of the, of the homes here with solar very easily and supply all of our electricity
and be carbon neutral at the same time.
And about two days ago Glen Beck interviewed Sir Richard Branson the founder of
Virgin Atlantic and Virgin Mobile, and Virgin everything. He's been running Virgin
Atlantic Airlines for 21 years and he just started Virgin America. And his intent within
the next year he's putting billions of dollars into research for a carbon neutral fuel that
will power the airlines. There's so much new technology happening right now that we
can easily become--I was also the Y2K organizer for Maui to get this island self
sufficient--and there's so much technology available that we can use right now to get
ourselves self sufficient.
And the other thing I want to mention is that amongst street people that I've talked to on
the island what they, what they're saying is that Linda Lingle basically went behind all of
our backs when she went to Indonesia on the pretense of creating a security system, a
joint security system to protect us from tsunamis when her real intent was to, was to sign
this, was to take businessmen with her and sign this palm oil agreement. And it, it's
pretty appalling and people are watching the County Council very carefully to see if we
support her actions without taking into account the real, you know, desire of Mauians
and, and, and beyond to, to really create our planet carbon neutral. So thank you very
much for all your efforts.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Susan. Questions for the, for the testifier? If not, I just
want to make a comment and that is the Planning Committee feels that it's our
responsibility and our role to also provide opportunities so people can be educating as
well as educating ourselves about both sides of an issue. Because it's really important
that we are well informed when we make decisions.
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MS. DOUGLAS: I know and I appreciate that.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. DOUGLAS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: We have one, another testifier who signed up and that is Masako Westcott.
Good morning.
MS. WESTCOTT: Good morning, Chairman Baisa, and Council Members. I'm Masako
Cordray Westcott. I'm here to ask that you require an EIS of the project to build an oil
refinery here on Maui certainly, initially using palm oil. I have no expertise on biofuels.
I'm a fulltime farmer and a photographer. I have a long-term project photographing
native flower species. Out of that work I have traveled to Indonesia, Borneo, Ecuador,
Venezuela, Trinidad, and Costa Rica. On one trip to Costa Rica along the Pacific coast,
my husband and I were in the most beautiful forest we've ever seen in all of our travels to
photograph forests. And it was really striking. Really the, the archetype of, of our vision
of a tropical forest tiered, and, and the divers ... , diversity of tree species, birds, and
butterflies. It was breathtaking and, and really something I'll never forget. I'll always
treasure.
As we moved along the coast we really literally crossed a line and entered a palm oil
plantation. And the difference was striking, alarming, heartbreaking really. It was a
mono culture and mile after mile and hour after hour we drove through a palm oil
plantation. You know when I've heard HECo, MECo suggest and, and Natural
Resources Defense Council talk about a sustainable palm oil plantation it really misses
the point. I'm here to testify that a palm oil plantation sustainable or not is not a forest.
And the tropical forests are the earth's treasury of biodiversity. And without regard for
that we are missing the truth of our place on this earth.
I'm asking you as a citizen, as a human, to please take this into account as you consider
the impact Maui might have if we were to move forward with this and to stimulate the
transformation of the forests of the tropics into oil plantations. It's already going on. It's
accelerating and we would add to it. And I for one as a Maui person will, don't want to
take that part. If I may say one more thing personally I'm not tied to Maui Electric. I
have a photovoltaic system that supplies all of my needs. It's modest but it's enough.
And I want to suggest that this body encourage a decentralization of our electricity
system that it has, certainly has a place. And that's another way to lower the cost for
people. I mean we, we, we have a, we have a fine life. We have a wonderful
comfortable home. And thank you for your, your attention.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for Ms. Westcott? If not, thank
you for being here. Are there any other testifiers? Anybody else who would like to
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testify? Seeing none.
testimony.

If, with no objections, the Chair would like to close public

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR BAlSA: Testimony is closed. And the Chair would like to call a brief ten-minute recess
so that we can get ready to have the comments by the Planning Director and maybe
somebody from Economic Development. And have more discussion among the
Members. So, if, without objections, we're going to go into recess for about ten minutes .
. . . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:56 a.m.
11:07 a.m.

ITEM-15

BIOMASS ENERGY (C.c. No. 07-201)

ITEM-8

BLUE EARTH MAUl BIODIESEL (e.c. No. 07-145)

CHAIR BAlSA: ... (gavel). .. The meeting of the Planning Committee meeting is back in
order. Thank you for the little break folks. And I'd like to now ask our Planning
Director Jeff Hunt. We also have our Economic Development Director Deidre Tegarden.
If they have any comments they'd like to make. Jeff, would you like to start?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. Our staff met with the, the proponents of this project a couple
months ago and the initial take from our staff is that the zoning that was approved by the
Council several years ago was specifically for a power generating plant, and it also
contained provisions for alternative energy. At that time there was an Environmental
Assessment performed for that project. The, the staff has concerns as to whether based
on that that a new Environmental Impact Statement is required. And, again, if the, if the
existing zoning approves this power generating plant with provisions for alternative
energy can be argued that we don't need an Environmental Impact Statement one has
already been done.
There's also questions about other similar type processes going on on the island. Maui
Biodiesel refining cooking oil, and there hasn't been an Environmental Impact Statement
required for that. And what's the difference between cooking oil and palm oil other than
the long term source, which, which is a legitimate question but, but again we're talking a
strict interpretation of a trigger for an Environmental Impact Statement. The staff person
who handled the discussions also felt that there wasn't any County or State land or
money involved and, and so therefore it would be questionable whether an
Environmental Impact Statement was required.
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The, the staff planner who handled the discussions believes that if an Environmental
Impact Statement is required because of the new law regarding oil refineries that that
would be made by the State PUC and not the County. So, at this time, there's a number
of questions that the Planning Department has regarding whether an Environmental
Impact Statement would be required. And we can, we can pursue those questions a little
further but at, at this point it's, we don't have a firm position that one would be required.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mis ... , Jeff, could you please repeat, it went rather fast, when we, when they
received the zoning approval you said that they had permission to do a power generating
plant and there was another piece.
MR. HUNT: I've been informed and, and I, I don't know the project that well to be honest with
you, but I was informed that the, the zoning that was approved by the Council was for a
power generating plant but it also included provisions for alternative energy.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: That's, that's the piece that went by me. Thank you very much. Members,
questions for the Planning Director? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Jeff, and I, I guess I hear uncertainty in your response to I
guess the questions that were posed by the testifiers. With regard to the, you're talking
about the Waena site. Is that correct?
MR. HUNT: I believe so.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right. And what will you do in terms of trying to make a
determination about whether or not the type of facility that's planned particularly on this
scale, you know, that's being spoken about is I guess acceptable utilizing the old
Environmental Impact Statement? Because I'm under the impression that even an EIS
has a life span that you would have to at the very least update the EIS to incorporate new
or additional information that was not present when you first did your original EIS. And
it even, I mean I've had requests or a planning director before you stated basically if was
over so many years old he would request a new one.
So, you know, can you give any kind of insight into what I guess the length of time
would be that these particular Environmental Impact Statements or EA's are good for?
And also address the issue of within the original Environmental Impact Statement what it
does is it describes a scenario and then the various agencies comment on that at that point
in time but this is something completely different from what was originally proposed
'cause that was a totally conventional power plant.
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MR. HUNT: I think the Department can commit to analyzing these questions and researching
these questions. Again, my initial take on it is the Department can't commit to saying
that an EIS is required at this time given, given the, the facts that, that I just explained.
But we want to be, we want to be responsive to these concerns and, and we will analyze
them. And, and of course if the Council is expressing these concerns we, we will take
those into account. At this point we can't firmly say that we believe an EIS is required.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And when we get into the discussion later, Madam Chair,
you know, I'll have additional comments.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mr. Hunt. The EA
you mentioned that was done do you have the date, offhand the date, and what, any
findings in that EA?
MR. HUNT: I don't have it offhand.
MR. CURTIS (spoke from the audience): December of'97.
MR. HUNT: I, I can get that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. December '97. I guess according to someone in the
gallery. So, in terms of I guess following up on Member Johnson's question is there I
guess a time period where if an EA is .. .I guess deemed to be expired by some would
another EA have to be done? Because you mentioned that there was provisions in the I
guess the, the original zoning for this area for a renewable plant as well as a power
generating plant. So, would there be a requirement that another EA be done because of
the time lapse? We're looking at about seven years now.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Ten.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, no, ten years. Excuse me.
MR. HUNT: We can analyze that, that question, that issue of whether the EA that was approved
several years ago is, is still adequate. You know I, I, I can commit to analyzing that
question. I don't have the answer to that question right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, Madam Chair, one more question I guess maybe I
don't know if maybe it might be a question more appropriate for Corporation Counsel in,
in response to a statement given by the Planning Director.
CHAIR BAlSA: Go ahead, Member.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Giroux, the Planning Director mentioned that I guess
questions or issues was brought up by the planner that had worked on this with regards to
the State PUC maybe making the recommendation for an EA rather than the County.
Can you add comment to that?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Madam Chair. I, I think one of the issues is, is that when the issue
of the project comes up it's, a lot of times it's who's the accepting agency or authority
that needs the, the informational document in order to make its decisions based on the
project. And I believe what the, the Planning Director was telling you was that he
believes that this project might have gone through all of the County entitlements already
and now it's the State, at the State level where they may need this document. And so, if
they find that there's a deficiency or they, a need for that document to be produced then
they would decide that. That would probably be where you're going to find the litigation
coming out of that if, if one is not produced or, you know, that, that type of discussion.
So, I think that's just the, the matter of who's the accepting authority, who's, you know,
and who's the body who needs that information at the earliest practicable time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and at this point we're, we're not even down that road
yet.
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. I'm, I'm not sure where we are as far as where the project is. That's,
that's, you know, a piece of information I think that's missing right now-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: --with, with this project.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. There was a question I forgot to ask and that would be, and
you may not be able to answer it, Mr. Hunt, but with regard to the actual permits that
would be required in order to construct on the site. What would the County's permitting
requirements be?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hunt.
MR. HUNT: I, I don't know the exact permitting requirements for this particular project off the
top of my head. I think it's important that people realize that there are triggers and there
is a process. Apparently, they have come before the Council previously and gotten
entitlements through the Change in Zoning and, and the District Boundary Amendment,
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and an Environmental Assessment was filed at that time. Generally speaking ... that's
what I've been informed occurred. Generally speaking if the entitlements are, are all put
in place first, then someone comes in, and the next step is usually more administrative or
minis ... , ministerial. And so that, that's how the process is intended to work.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. But if let's say for example I'll use the Superferry because
that was one of the examples used in testimony, if we get into a situation where we as a
Council believe that an Environmental Impact Statement is required and perhaps we
disagree with the Administration's view on it. Just because, you know, sometimes even
between the State and County we don't agree, we have different perspectives. If the
Council were to I guess take some type of action at a future meeting or whatever saying
that, no, you know, we pass a resolution or we pass some kind of legislation that would
be binding in terms of issuance on permits until an Environmental Impact Statement is
completed. Is that something that I guess in your view we also would have the authority
to do?
MR. HUNT: I'm not, I'm not in the habit of telling you what your authority is. Certainly, if you
guys pass legislation the Planning Department will respect that and act accordingly and
implement that. Again, I want to make it clear we're not saying no on this. I mean I, I
sense some tension that everyone is starting to say, oh, the Planning Department is, you
know, all I'm saying is that there's some questions. The questions need to be answered
and there should be some research. There's some legitimate issues that led the staff
planner to come to a first blush conclusion that, that there has been an environmental
analysis already performed.
So, again, if Council has some concerns and, you know, I'm here to listen to your
concerns. If there's some concerns we will reevaluate the, the situation and, and take a
fresh look at that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I think you mentioned the staff planner was who?
MR. HUNT: Colleen Suyama.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Any further questions for the Planning Director? Otherwise, I'd like to move
on to the Economic Development person.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just one quick question-CHAIR BAISA: Sure. Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for the Planning Director. You mentioned in your opening
comments about the, the I guess I presume it was Ms. Suyama who made the initial study
about the requirement of an EA now for the other biodiesel company as well. So, if
whether the County or the PUC requires an EA done would that be then set in precedent
and quite possibly subjecting the, the, the existing biodiesel company having to do an EA
as well? Is that what, I'm just trying to interpret your comments.
MR. HUNT: Her comments to me was an example of perhaps why we wouldn't, it was on the
side of the argument of perhaps why we wouldn't require an EA giving the new
legislation regarding oil refineries.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And typically an EA would, would roughly go how, for how
long? How long does it take to get it processed and finalized?
MR. HUNT: The start to finish of, of an EA process?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: Oh, perhaps a year maybe. I mean you know depending on, on the, on the project.
Some are more complex than others.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. If it's okay we'll move on. We'd like some comments
from our Economic Development Director Deidre Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. Good morning, Madam Chair, Council Members.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning.
MS. TEGARDEN: You know we, we certainly support all steps towards renewable energy but
we realize that there still needs to be research conducted and there is no single one
operation that is going to, you know, in and of itself, solve all the energy issues of Maui
County, which is why we like to make sure that we're looking at, you know, biofuels as
well as wind energy, and, and solar. Which is another reason we are having the energy
expo in November as a chance for people to come out here and learn about what we're
doing, what people are doing in Maui County for renewable energy. I think we had a lot
of people testifying today that, you know, they, they have, their house is completely
powered by solar energy.
We just want to make sure that everybody knows what options we have out there in Maui
County and then, you know, from there work with everybody to, to map our future. But
it was very interesting being here this morning and hearing the testimonies and it's
wonderful to be a part of all this.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Questions for our Director? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, thank you for being here. I know that you I guess
filled in for someone else. So, I'm sure that you have your thoughts on this subject too.
One of the issues that was brought up by the testifier or, or maybe even more than one
testifier is the economic aspect of this particular project. And of course what your
charged with doing is I guess creating an environment that really opens Maui to
economic development and prosperity and sustainability-MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --more geared I think to local entrepreneurs as opposed to bringing
in large businesses where the income goes, you know, elsewhere. So, in your experience
has I guess Pacific Biodiesel is the one entity that is right now I guess operating, has it
been your experience though that we've done everything we can as a County to help
promote the types of things that Mr. Shibuya was speaking about? And what can we do
to help you to promote local entrepreneurial opportunities as were outlined by the
testifiers?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that. I think we can always do more. You know, there's,
there's always the opportunity to take what we do for the community to the next level.
Again, I think that's one of the reasons the Mayor is planning the energy expo in
November to make sure that we are supporting what we already have here on Maui
County. We want to make sure that, you know, we are giving back to our, to our
community and, and, you know, we don't have projects just to, for the sake of having
projects. So, I think one of the things that would come from the, the energy expo in
November is really looking at are we utilizing everything that we already have here at
home? Are we supporting? Are we doing what we need to be doing to ensure that are,
there is, you know, a future here for renewable energy but for, you know, all of our
residents and our families?
You know so many people are, are going away to the mainland and you look at all the
projects like Maui Economic Development Board's Kamaaina Come Home Programs.
We really want to make sure that we have the jobs here that can sustain our families that
make it possible for, for our young people to stay here and, and work. So, we're, we're
always excited to, to see how we can help in that regard.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and you bring up a very good point. Have you been
able to do any kind of analysis on the BlueEarth Maui Biodiesel project in terms of the
type of job opportunities that it would create? And do we have I guess sufficient labor
force to undertake that or are we once again going to be importing more labor?
MS. TEGARDEN: We have not started an analysis as you are, to that extent. I do remember
and in hearing their plans for employee training in one of the items that they talked about
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over and over was to make sure that they provided ample training, if I am correct, to our
local citizens for those jobs so that we do not have to import from the mainland. While
we may have to import a few people to help with the training, I think between Maui
Community College and some of the other entities that we have on island, you know, it
would be our hope that we can be able to train the people that we have here on island to
provide them those jobs.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I, I hope that when you're doing the research on
that and dialoguing with anyone that wants to do a project particularly one with this kind
of scope that we look at the wage being paid; we look at are they going to be providing
benefits; is the job actually competitive in terms of, you know, is it going to pay more
than construction. Because right now even a lot of potential employees that we would
have here in Maui County are working construction jobs because it pays better. So, I, I
think that that's going to be really important at least to me from a sustainability
perspective. Because there's a lot of jobs available but not all of them pay a livable wage
or an attractive wage.
MS. TEGARDEN: You are exactly right, and, and we, we echo your sentiments.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank, thank you, Member Johnson. Any other questions for our presenters,
our Department folks? Any other comments? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: One of the things that I would really like to do and I guess this
would be Mr. Giroux too because I believe at least from my perspective to get additional
information when we meet on this again. I would like to know about the State
Legislation. I think it would be helpful to have a copy of that and also to have some
contact with the Legislators that crafted it or even Committee minutes that referred
specifically to the issue that we're talking about. Because I, I also look at the
grand-fathering a lot of times when was this passed because if Pacific Biodiesel was
already in operation at the time that the State Legislation was passed I believe this would
apply to new entities coming in because that's generally what's done with State
Legislation.
So, if Mr. Giroux could help us get that information or if we need to send a letter to
Corporation Counsel asking him to help provide that information I, I would appreciate
that. Also, the other issue which may help, Mr. Hunt, is to try to determine from an
environmental perspective I believe there is a limitation when an Environmental Impact
Statement or an Environmental Assessment, and I know we keep using those two terms
interchangeably, but I want to know was an EA or was it an EIS? And because generally
the scope ... (end of tape 2B) ... is much more in-depth then, and it has a slightly more
comprehensive process than just an EA. So, I want it, I would like to find that out.
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And then if information that was contained in the original environmental EA or EIS was
not specific and did not describe all the potential problems what would be required to
either do an updated EA, EIS, or to require a brand new one? So, I, I don't know if
Mr. Giroux can help us or if we can just simply have Staff draft the letter asking for
assistance in that area because to me it's really important that we know the answers to the
questions. And from my perspective a ten-year-old Environmental Assessment or
Environmental Impact Statement addressing a very narrow scope or at least specifics that
were described. Because I remember seeing some of the original hearings because that
was prior to my time on the Council. It was very specific and it wasn't, I don't think it
was construed to be comprehensive. All we had was that information that was given at
that time.
So, if new knowledge comes forward, you know, I would think that, you know, even
though zoning would be approved you bet your bottom dollar if a nuclear power plant
was going to be built there it would require some kind of environmental review. So,
those are my comments, Madam Chair, and I would seek some kind of additional
guidance to find out what our options are.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Giroux, any response?
MR. GIROUX: No. I'm sure our Department could, you know, get, get a copy of this, look at
the legislative history, look at the amendment, and provide you with maybe some kind of
commentary from the, the committees when they were looking over that amendment.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any additional questions, comments? If not, I guess
that we have reached the end of the morning's business. I would like to without
objection defer both of these items because I think they're going to need further attention
in our Committee with no objections from the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objection.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No objection. And just for clarification, Madam Chair, staff will
then I guess put in to some kind of response to Mr. Giroux to try to get additional
information.
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes. The Chair will make that request and I'm sure Staffwill help us draft the
letter.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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CHAIR BAlSA: Before I close I would like to thank everyone who came today. I'd like to
thank our presenters. I'd like to thank the testifiers, people who took time out of their
very busy schedules to be here. I'd like to thank the Staff and most of all my wonderful
Committee. Thank you very much. The stalwart Members that, that have been here
today. And without further business the meeting of the Planning Committee is now
adjourned.
ADJOURN:

11:32 a.m.

YS C. BAlSA, Chair
Planning Committee
Transcribed by: Cathy Simmons
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